Special Commission on Extremely Low-Income Housing Meeting Minutes
Date: December 2, 2025
10:00 AM – 11:00 AM
100 Cambridge St, Conference Room C
Boston, MA 02114
  
	Members Present 
Secretary Edward Augustus
Chris Norris
Libby Hayes
John Yazwinski
Ann Jochnick
Roberta Rubin
Michael Smith
Bill Grogan
Bran Shim
Andrew DeFranza
Moddie Turay
Megan Mulcahy (remote)
Sarah Byrnes (remote)
Emily Cooper (remote)
Rachel Heller (remote)
Emily Haber (remote)
Brian Bickford (remote)

	Members Not Present 
Adrianne Ramos 




	EOHLC Staff 
Jack Burke 
Philip Dearing 
Josh Cuddy 
Matt Walsh
 
	Others Present 



Call to Order  
The Secretary called the meeting to order at 10:03. Matt Walsh called the roll. The Secretary entertained a motion to approve the minutes, moved by Chris Norris and seconded by Roberta Rubin. Approval unanimous, with Bran Shim abstaining.
Recommendation overview
Matt Walsh walked through the full set of recommendations submitted to date and then voiced through key changes. The Secretary opened up the floor for key questions and concerns from the commissioners. 
Heller thanked everyone for the work in working groups and the HLC staff for their hard work. She raised the pool fund for supportive housing, suggesting that 2.4 and 3.9 should be combined, bringing together services and gap funding for supportive services. This should also involve inter-agency decision-making. She also raised in the preservation section that project-based vouchers are critical for development. Shim appreciated the prioritization that was implied, but felt that the writing should be balanced with mobile vouchers. Shim further mentioned the challenging fiscal difficulties and raised that we should further clarify the origin of the 4,400 voucher goal. Heller shared that the goal was set based on the 222,000 state housing production goal and so represented 2% of that. 
Jochnick added context that there is a shortage of 183,000 ELI units and that the need is expected to grow over time. Norris mentioned that page 24 has an error – LHAs and RAAs don’t do mobile voucher inspections currently. He also mentioned broadly that a chart might be helpful to outline the ELI housing needs on page 17, balancing where we anticipate ending up in 10 years. 20 years ago, the unmet capital needs were less than $1B, but now it is more than $8B. The Affordable Housing Act has put a lot of funding towards this goal, but the gap may grow over time. The Secretary has seen different deferred capital needs estimates and so it might be hard to do a chart for that, but he thinks showing the ELI housing gap in a chart might be helpful. Shim raised the balance of implementable goals with longer-term aspirations. 
Heller called out that because the capital backlog is so large, we can establish a goal to reduce the backlog over 10 years. Ideally, our budget is closing the gap between what tenants can pay and what the operational costs are. Byrnes emphasized recommendation 1.1 that calls for closing the backlog over time. Byrnes asked about the operating subsidy – how much is driven by rents vs LHA subsidies? Grogan added that we could more clearly tie the 2,200 unit goal with project-based vouchers and why they are so essential. Rubin highlighted section 2.2 that only highlighted mobile vouchers, when they should be highlighted in addition to project-based vouchers as well. Jochnick called out how limited mobile-based vouchers can be still with rising rents. 
Walsh highlighted the data recommendations to respond to the statutory charge establishing the commission. Norris highlighted that MRVP goals should be set on a clear base. He also added that for the EITC credits, 30% of income should be expected to be spent on housing rather than 100% of it. Shim responded on MRVP that it is unlikely to be funded in the next couple of years, but the overarching goal over the next decade to significantly increase MRVP is clear. Norris said that we aren’t great at succeeding on the lofty goals that we set, so we need to measure the impact of reaching that goal over time. The Secretary called out that it is hard to anticipate what macro-factors might impact the likelihood of success over time. Heller asked for MRVP to be called out even more clearly as the best tool for this work. Project-based vouchers will be critical when Continuum of Care funding cuts, but mobile-based vouchers are still a critical goal for bringing new people into the market as well. The Secretary agreed that an aspirational goal is essential to motivate policymakers as a north star – the specific tool matters less than the overall call that more resources are needed, and trade-offs need to be made in difficult budgetary times.  
Yazwinski asked whether the report should mention COC and emergency housing vouchers? The Secretary suggested that a cover letter could help to contextualize the environment that we are operating in and the fact that these challenges will continue to emerge. Walsh added that he wove in references to these circumstances throughout the report as well. Jochnick agreed that a chart would be helpful to highlight the need and shortfall for ELI households. She also added that the production and preservation have a lot of overlap in the tools that impact them. Cooper asked what the process would look like for approval. Shim agreed that this is the consensus of the group, but doesn’t necessarily reflect the endorsement of a specific commissioner or agency.
Wrap up and meeting closing 
The Secretary thanked everyone for their hard work as a part of this commission, from giving recommendations to supporting the drafting process. Yazwinski asked what next steps are out of this group. The Secretary mentioned that we will finish and submit the report first before the end of the year. We could then offer to do a session with the housing caucus highlighting what is in the report. We could set a briefing with the Governor and Lieutenant Governor. Representative Smith asked whether there would be another meeting and the Secretary suggested that we will hopefully have a celebratory meeting with the Governor in the new year. 
The Secretary entertained a motion to adjourn, moved by Rubin, seconded by Hayes. The motion to adjourn was approved unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 10:50.
